
This will be a hybrid meeting held in person in the Village Council Chambers with a remote participation option available via Zoom due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  
The Village of Beverly Hills will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing impaired and 
audiotapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities attending the meeting upon three 
working days’ notice to the Village. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Village by writing or 
phone, 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Beverly Hills, MI 48025 (248) 646-6404. 

Village of Beverly Hills             Municipal Building 
Regular Village Council Meeting               18500 W. 13 Mile Road  
Tuesday, June 7, 2022                                 7:30 p.m. 
 

Zoom link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85994199023 
Meeting ID: 859 9419 9023 

Dial in: 1-646-876-9923 (US)  
 

AGENDA 
Roll Call/Call to order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Amendments to Agenda/Approve Agenda 
 
Community Announcements 
 
Public Comments on items not on the published agenda 
 
Consent Agenda 
1. Review and consider approval of minutes of a regular Council meeting held May 17, 2022. 
2. Review and consider approval of minutes of a Closed Session meeting held May 17, 2022. 
3. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, May 23, 2022.  
4. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, June 6, 2022.  
5. Review and consider Platelet Disorder Support Association’s request to hold 5K at Beverly Park. 
6. Review and consider Birmingham Public Schools’ request to hold 5K at Beverly Park.  
7. Review and consider Parks & Recreation Board’s recommendation to distribute 5-Year Community 

Recreation Plan Survey. 
8. Review and consider resolution recognizing June 2022 as Pride Month. 
 
Business Agenda 
1. Discuss 14 Mile Road Improvement Program scope of work.  
 
Public comments  
 
Manager’s report 
 
Council comments 
 
Adjournment 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85994199023


REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 17, 2022 – PAGE 1 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Present: President George, President Pro-Tem Hrydziuszko; Members: Abboud, 

Kecskemeti, Mooney, O’Gorman, and Peddie 

 

Absent: None 

  

Also Present: Village Manager, Campbell 

  Village Clerk/Assistant Manager, Rutkowski  

  Village Attorney, Ryan  

  Public Safety Director, Torongeau  

  Finance Director, McCarthy 

 

President George called the regular Village Council meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. in the Village 

Council Chambers located at 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025. The Pledge 

of Allegiance was recited by those in attendance.  

 

AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA/APPROVE AGENDA 

Motion by Mooney, second by Peddie, to approve the agenda as published.  

 

 Motion passed. 

 

COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Steve Zintsmaster, Lincoln Hills Court, commented on the 14 Mile Road Improvement project. He 

said that residents are very much in support of sidewalks along 14 Mile Road and stated that kids 

would then be able to walk to school. He said that there is a lot of support, even if not voiced at 

the meetings.   

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

George commented that one of the Consent Agenda items is a resolution recognizing May as 

Mental Health Awareness Month and that there are mental health resources available for people. 

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Abboud, be it resolved, the consent agenda is approved. 

1. Review and consider approval of minutes of a regular Council meeting held May 3, 2022. 

2. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, May 9, 2022. 

3. Review and consider resolution appointing SOCRRA representatives. 

4. Review and consider resolution appointing SOCWA representatives. 

5. Review and consider Sculptures in the Park Artist Agreements. 

6. Review and consider resolution recognizing May 2022 as Mental Health Awareness Month. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

BUSINESS AGENDA 

UPDATES FROM THE ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 

A. GREENFIELD & BEVERLY TRAFFIC CIRCLE 

C1 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 17, 2022 – PAGE 2 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Sam Fitzer, Director of Engineering, Road Commission for Oakland County was in 

attendance and gave a presentation on traffic circles. He stated that the Greenfield and 

Beverly Road traffic circle is on the construction schedule for 2023. A traffic operations 

analysis has been completed. He presented a conceptual design and the RCOC is working 

on design details. He also spoke about grading, drainage, and coordination with the utility 

partners in the area. RCOC is estimating the project will cost $1.5 million. The cost sharing 

will be between RCOC (50%), the City of Royal Oak (25%), and the Village of Beverly 

Hills (25%). Fitzer noted the RCOC is applying for federal safety grant funding for critical 

intersections. Fitzer stated that safety is the top priority.  

 

Mooney asked about sidewalks. Fitzer stated the RCOC will do its best to maintain all of 

the sidewalks in the impacted area. 

 

Mooney asked about putting a traffic light at this intersection.  Fitzer stated this intersection 

does not meet the warrants or requirements for installing a traffic signal. He also noted the 

electricity and infrastructure required for traffic lights.  

 

Kecskemeti stated that some people are uncomfortable with roundabouts or traffic circles. 

Fitzer outlined the crash data and statistics and emphasized that safety is the top priority 

and that traffic circles can improve safety in the area. 

 

Council members asked about drainage and a drainage basin. Fitzer noted that RCOC 

would have more specific figures in late June.  

 

Abboud asked about pedestrian crossings. Fitzer noted there would be striping and perhaps 

signals/flashing lights for pedestrian crossing. 

 

Mooney stated that traffic control at this intersection has needed to be addressed for some 

time.  

 

O’Gorman asked about utility providers. Fitzer indicated that whichever utility lines are in 

the road right of way, then the utility provider would incur the costs to relocate them.  

 

O’Gorman stated that he is a fan of roundabouts and thinks that there are significant 

benefits for installing them.  

 

Council took comments from the public. 

 

Nancy Gale, Beverly Court, asked about underground water storage, the chances of 

discharging into the street, and whether the Parks & Recreation Board has been notified of 

this project.  

 

Karen Gilbert, Amherst, asked about the existence of sidewalks in the area and whether 

RCOC would be putting any sidewalks in. She thinks the traffic circle would be a good 

thing. She thinks that the development of Beverly Green should slow down until the traffic 

circle is complete.  

 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 17, 2022 – PAGE 3 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

B. REVIEW AND CONSIDER TRAFFIC CIRCLE STUDY FOR SOUTHFIELD & 

BEVERLY ROAD INTERSECTION  

Sam Fitzer, Road Commission for Oakland County, shifted his discussion to a proposed 

traffic circle study at the Southfield Road and Beverly Road intersection. The item before 

Council would be to authorize a traffic operations analysis to assess the feasibility of a 

roundabout at this intersection. RCOC recognizes the critical need of this intersection. 

Fitzer reiterated the benefits of roundabouts as they relate to safety, traffic, and congestion. 

He showed a diagram of roundabouts compared to standard intersections which 

demonstrated that there are less points of vehicle and pedestrian conflict at roundabouts. 

He provided examples of successful traffic circles in the county. He noted that RCOC 

solicited an engineering proposal and would ask that the Village of Beverly Hills pay half 

of the cost, which would be around $16,000.  

 

Mooney asked when this process was initiated and when told last winter, he stated he did 

not recall the Council directing the previous Manager to ask for this study. 

 

Council discussed pedestrian safety and the speed limit on Southfield Road. All agreed that 

pedestrian safety is a major concern.  Fitzer noted that the Michigan State Police would be 

the entity to conduct a speed limit study, which is based on average existing speeds.  

 

Kecskemeti stated that the Village should explore all options to see how to make this 

intersection safer, not just the traffic circle option. She gave a pedestrian bridge as an 

example.  

 

Hrydziuszko encouraged everyone to use the traffic circles on Evergreen Road in 

Southfield to gain first-hand experience of how they function.  

 

Abboud asked about the variables in the feasibility study. Fitzer noted that they look at 

traffic volume, crash history, types of collisions, and existing geometry.  

 

George noted that the Village had already agreed to replace the traffic signal at this location 

and inquired about how RCOC determines whether a dedicated left lane or turn signal is 

appropriate. 

 

The Council discussed adding additional elements to the study to modify the scope of the 

study to include more options.   

 

Mooney stated that he thinks a roundabout at this location will cut the Village into two. He 

thinks the infrastructure subcommittee should review the proposal and contact RCOC and 

Hubbell, Roth, and Clark.  

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Peddie, the Beverly Hills Village Council moves to 

refer the Southfield and Beverly Road traffic circle study proposal to the 

infrastructure subcommittee who will consult with the Road Commission for 

Oakland County and Hubbell, Roth, and Clark and report back to Council. 

 

Motion passed. 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 17, 2022 – PAGE 4 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

 George thanked Fitzer for attending the meeting and providing this useful information.  

 

John Novak, Waltham, stated that a pedestrian bridge over Southfield Road should be 

discussed.  

 

UPDATE FROM THE WATER RESOURCES COMMISSION 

Campbell provided an overview of the Evergreen-Farmington Sanitary Drain and the increase in 

the proposed debt service charge as a result of participating in this agreement.  

 

Jim Nash, Water Resources Commissioner (WRC), gave an overview of the Evergreen-

Farmington Sanitary Drain Corrective Action Plan (CAP).  

 

Sid Lockhart, WRC Deputy & Special Projects Manager, introduced Maria Sedki, Design 

Engineer from Fishbeck and Tim Minor, Engineer from Applied Science who are also working on 

this project.  

 

Lockhart presented the current projects that are underway as part of the CAP, including the 8 Mile 

Sewer Conveyance CAP, Lathrup Village CAP, and Walnut Lake Pump Station No. 1 CAP. The 

8 Mile Sewer Conveyance CAP is 60% complete with the design. Its current estimated cost to 

complete is $83.6 million and the final cost is anticipated to be published in fall of 2022.  

 

Mooney clarified that WRC is required by law to do the CAP. He noted that conveyance as 

discussed throughout the presentation relates to conveying more water by means of more or larger 

pipes to get treated, so the system does not overflow.  He noted that prices continue to increase.  

 

The representatives from WRC answered questions from the Council regarding alternatives, costs, 

flow meters, and increased capacity.  

 

Sedki discussed how the initial concept developed and the main changes that arose during the 

design, specifically with the pump stations. There were upgrades required at the pump station that 

impacted the design and increased the cost of the project by nearly $46 million. She stated that the 

design is 60% complete and they are hoping that no other major changes arise.  

 

Lockhart noted that there was a construction risk manager hired to help with cost estimates along 

the way. He also talked about the limited supply chain and delays in manufacturing.  

 

Abboud asked about the longevity of the pump stations. Sedki stated that they anticipate the pump 

stations will remain in good condition for 20 years, or more with routine maintenance.  

 

Minor noted that this is more efficient to complete as a regional project. Beverly Hills’ share of 

the current estimated cost is $7,590,000 to be paid over 20 years.  

 

WRC is applying for grant funding to potentially offset some of the costs.  

 

It was noted that WRC hosts monthly meetings to provide updates and answer questions from the 

public on the fourth Monday of the month at 2:00 p.m. Nash stated that he can be reached at 248-

842-6185 with any questions.  

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 17, 2022 – PAGE 5 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

The Council expressed their appreciation for WRC attending the meeting and explaining the cost 

increase.  

 

George called a recess at 9:47 p.m. 

 

The meeting resumed at 9:53 p.m. 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 VILLAGE 

OF BEVERLY HILLS BUDGET 

Campbell thanked Finance Director McCarthy for taking the lead on the budget.  

 

McCarthy presented the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 proposed budget. She stated that the Village is 

fiscally stable with a healthy fund balance. She noted that the water and sewer usage rate will 

increase by 10% and the debt service charge will increase from $20 to $45 per quarterly bill 

effective July 1. She talked about how the Village’s rates compare to neighboring communities’ 

rates. She outlined the General Fund, Public Safety Fund, Road Funds, and Transfers.  

 

 Motion by Mooney, second by Abboud, to adopt the following resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, the Village Council of Beverly Hills conducted a public hearing on the 

proposed 2022/2023 Fiscal Year Budget on Tuesday, May 3, 2022 and public comments 

have been heard and considered. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the 2022/2023 Fiscal Year Budget for the 

General Fund, Public Safety Fund, Park Improvement Fund, Library Fund, Major Road 

Fund, Local Streets Fund, Drug Law Enforcement, Retiree Health Care, Vacation Reserve, 

Sick Pay Reserve, ARPA Fund, Capital Projects, Water and Sewer and MERS Retiree 

Health Care Fund Operating Budgets in the following amounts are hereby adopted on this 

17th day of May, 2022: 

 

FUND NAME    REVENUES   APPROPRIATIONS 

 

General Fund    $4,031,658   $3,782,268 

Public Safety Fund   $6,810,948   $6,553,335 

Park Improvement Fund  $   212,879   $   250,000 

Library Fund    $   544,360   $   543,860 

Major Road Fund   $   912,647   $1,877,878 

Local Streets Fund   $1,016,987   $   747,106 

Drug Law Enforcement  $              0   $              0 

Retiree Health Care   $   800,000   $   819,400 

Vacation Reserve   $     24,250   $      16,148 

Sick Pay Reserve   $     10,250   $      11,965 

ARPA Fund    $   544,116   $    844,350 

Capital Projects Fund   $   100,500   $               0 

Water & Sewer Fund   $5,856,779   $ 5,821,151 

MERS Retiree Health   $   365,000   $    365,000 

  

Roll Call Vote: 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 17, 2022 – PAGE 6 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR THE 

2022/2023 FISCAL YEAR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS BUDGET 

 Motion by Hrydziuszko, second by Mooney to adopt the following resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, the Village Council of Beverly Hills has adopted its annual budget for its 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022 in accordance with State law and the Village Charter; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the Village Council is also required to adopt an appropriations act to provide 

the authority to incur obligations and expend public funds.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the adopted budget for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023 shall establish the approved appropriation 

levels for the said fiscal year.  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Village Council retains authority to amend the 

Village budget and this appropriations act at such times when deviations from the projected 

revenues and authorized expenditure levels become necessary and the amount of the 

deviations becomes known. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE 2022/2023 MILLAGE RATE 

 Motion by Peddie, second by Mooney to adopt the following resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, the Village Council of Beverly Hills has adopted its annual budget for its 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022 in accordance with State law and the Village Charter;  
 

WHEREAS, the Village Council must also adopt a millage rate to be levied on the Village 

tax roll for 2022;  

WHEREAS, Act 298 of 1917 allows cities and villages to levy a tax not to exceed 3 mills 

for the purposes of garbage collection and disposal. The annual rubbish tax shall be in 

addition to the amount authorized to be levied for general purposes; and  

 

WHEREAS, Public Act 5 of 1982 does not apply to levying for Debt Service.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Village Council does hereby approve 

the total 2022 millage rate for the Village at 13.6735 mills and the 13.6735 millage rate is 

to be distributed as follows:  

 

General Fund ……...…………………………….…………………………... 1.8152 mills 

Public Safety Fund ……………………………….……………….………… 9.5593 mills 

Library Fun…………………………………………………………….…….. 0.7901 mills 

Park Improvement ……………………………………………….………...… 0.3089 mills 

Rubbish Fund …………………………………….………………………….. 1.2000 mills 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 17, 2022 – PAGE 7 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Total Millage Rate …………………………………..………….………..… 13.6735 mills 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE 2022-2023 RATE 

SCHEDULE FOR WATER CONSUMPTION AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL 

O’Gorman clarified the changes in the water and sewer rates.  He stated that there are two 

components to the change: a 10% usage increase and a $25 increase for debt service.  

 

 Motion by O’Gorman, second by Kecskemeti to adopt the following resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, each premises within the Village of Beverly Hills connected to the water 

and/or sanitary sewer system shall pay a consumption charge based upon the amount of 

water used as shown by the water meter installed in each premises.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Beverly Hills Village Council hereby 

approve the water and/or sanitary consumption charges as follows:  

 

Water & Sewer 

Water Consumption      $ 2.4345 per 100 cu ft  

Sanitary Sewer Operation, Maintenance & Repair  $ 7.2109 per 100 cu ft 

Total        $ 9.6454 

 

Debt Service 

Debt Service       $ 45.00 per bill  

 

Infrastructure 

Infrastructure       $ 70.00 per bill  

 

Water Only 

$ 2.4345 per 100 cu ft  

 

Sewer Only 

All sewer-only customers per quarter   $ 174.9946 Infrastructure/  

$ 49.0875 Debt Service  

Total        $ 224.0821  

 

Effective with all water and sewer usage after July 1, 2022 and thereafter until changed. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER AWARDING RECODIFICATION BID TO MUNICODE 

Campbell and Rutkowski gave an overview. The Village of Beverly Hills published a request for 

proposals on MITN/BidNet on for recodification services for the Village Municipal Code. A public 

bid opening was held on February 28, 2022 in the Village Council Chambers. We received three 

proposals and thank all three firms for creating a proposal for the Village of Beverly Hills.  



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 17, 2022 – PAGE 8 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

 

Administration reviewed the proposals for completeness, pricing and value for services, 

experience of the firm/staff, experience working in Michigan, style options, website and online 

library, online code user-friendliness, turn-around time, and additional offerings. 

 

Administration recommends Council award the recodification bid to Municode. We think the 

Village would get the best value for services with Municode. Municode is a reputable organization 

nationwide and has over 300 clients in the state of Michigan. The base price is $12,950.00 with an 

annual web hosting fee of $450.00 and an annual full service supplement fee of $2,000.00. 

Administration also recommends taking advantage of the gender neutralization option for the Code 

during initial recodification process for the one-time fee of $575.00.  

 

Municode’s recodification process will take 10-12 months to complete. It includes recodification 

of the entire code and setting up the online hosting. The base cost includes legal analysis and 

research by a full-time Municode attorney and implementation of approved legal findings, such as 

updating State Law references. It also includes updating tables, graphics, and indexing. The 

Village would receive three printed and bound copies.   

 

Additional copies and services are available for purchase, should Council and Administration wish 

to explore those in the future.  

 

Motion by Kecskemeti, second by Abboud, be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village 

Council awards the recodification bid to Municode in the initial amount of $13,525.00 and 

an annual amount beginning next year of $2,450.00 (for web hosting and supplementation). 

Funds are available in accounts 101-200-971.03 and 101-200-971.04 (Recodification 

Services and Annual Webhosting Fee – Municipal Code).   

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER RESOLUTION REGARDING NEXT AND THE MIDVALE 

BUILDING 

George provided an overview of the proposed resolution regarding Birmingham Next and the 

Midvale Building location and opened the floor for public comments. 

 

The following members of the public spoke in support of the resolution for Next and encouraged 

Council to pass the resolution: Jacob Scweizberg; Greg Burry, 13 Mile Road; John Novak, 

Waltham; and Dan Sula, Hampton. They all spoke of the positive impact Next has had in their 

lives.  

 

Cris Braun, Executive Director of Next, asked for Council’s support and stated that Next is in need 

of a larger building to accommodate seniors and the growing aging population. She said they could 

use some of the current courtyard space for extra classrooms.  

 

O’Gorman stated that Next is very important to the community and helps people mitigate feelings 

of isolation. He said mental health issues impact seniors as well and he appreciates all that Next 

does.  

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 17, 2022 – PAGE 9 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Motion by Abboud, second by O’Gorman: 

 

WHEREAS, NEXT, a non-profit 501-(c)3, is our area’s version of a Senior Center serving 

2,250 50-plus area residents from Beverly Hills, Birmingham, Bingham Farms, Franklin 

and the surrounding areas, and; 

 

WHEREAS, NEXT is housed at Midvale School at 2121 Midvale St, Birmingham, 

Michigan, and; 

 

WHEREAS, NEXT has occupied, without a written agreement, approximately 10,000 

square feet or 1/3 of the square footage of Midvale School, since 1995 provided through 

the generous support of Birmingham Public Schools, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the four communities of Birmingham, Bingham Farms, Beverly Hills and 

Franklin recently entered into an inter-local agreement pledging continued financial 

support in addition to the in-kind assistance providing the use of Midvale School from 

BPS, and; 

 

WHEREAS, local demographic trends are similar to, but occurring much earlier than, 

national demographic trends which project double digit increases in the 65 and over 

population, resulting for the first time in our history with people 65 and older outnumbering 

those 17 and younger, and; 

 

WHEREAS, locally the four funding communities households with seniors will increase 

by more than 50% by 2045 with a significant percentage of 65+ residents living alone, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the NEXT Executive Director and Birmingham Public Schools 

representatives have discussed NEXT’s desire for a long term, written agreement (lease) 

between NEXT and BPS, and; 

 

WHEREAS, BPS Schools has advised NEXT that they would hope to address this issue 

during discussions expected to come about while updating the BPS Strategic Plan and 

would then advise NEXT then of their position regarding a long term written agreement 

(lease), and; 

 

WHEREAS, a long term written agreement (Lease of Midvale Space) would allow NEXT 

to develop long range plans for making physical improvements to the existing building and 

expanding the footprint of the Midvale space for the growing demands of the NEXT 

services; 

 

Therefore Be It Resolved, that the Beverly Hills Village Council supports NEXT in their 

request to BPS for a long term written agreement (lease) for the use of space for the NEXT 

operation and services at Midvale School and directs the Village Clerk to forward this 

resolution along with an appropriate cover letter to the BPS School Superintendent for their 

review and consideration. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 17, 2022 – PAGE 10 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

 

SECOND ANNOUCEMENT OF VARIOUS BOARD/COMMISSION VACANCIES 

Campbell gave the second announcement of various Board and Commission vacancies. 

 

The following is a list of board members whose terms expire on June 30, 2022.  All of the members 

listed below have been notified of their term expiration and asked to submit an application if they 

are interested in reappointment. The names in parenthesis are not seeking reappointment. Council 

agreed in November of 2008 to make these vacancies open to the public as well as the currently 

seated member.     

   

Birmingham Area Cable Board  Parks & Recreation Board   

Gilbert Gugni     Sara Bresnahan 

Shane Henry          

 

Planning Commission   Zoning Board of Appeals 

(Robert Stempien)    (Reanan Maxwell) 

Patrick Westerlund    Jon Oen 

Benjamin Wilensky    Susan Robbins 

   

All terms are for three years beginning July 1, 2022 and expiring June 30, 2025.  All interested 

and eligible residents of Beverly Hills are encouraged to apply. Descriptions of each 

Board/Commission can be found on the Village website by selecting “Boards/Commission” under 

the “Government” tab.  The deadline for applications is Wednesday, June 8, 2021.  Applications 

are available on the Village website or by emailing the Village Clerk at 

krutkowski@villagebeverlyhills.com. A blank application was also included in this packet. 

 

This constitutes the second announcement of the vacancies with appointments scheduled to take 

place at the June 21, 2022 regular Village Council meeting. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None. 

 

MANAGER’S REPORT 

Thank you - As the new Village Manager, I want to thank the Council and entire staff for 

welcoming me to the Village with open arms. I look forward to serving the residents of Beverly 

Hills. 

 

Events Last Weekend - I just wanted to thank the volunteers who participated in the Park Clean 

Up and Tree planting on Saturday, as well as the participants and attendees of Java and Jazz on 

Sunday. I want to also thank Goddard School for sponsoring the coffee for Java and Jazz. 

 

South Evergreen Interceptor Rehabilitation Project - HRC informed our offices that the Evergreen 

Interceptor Project is almost completed. Assuming the weather remains good and there are no other 

unforeseen issues, Evergreen Rd and 14 Mile Rd will be repaved, the project area restored, and 

the roadways back open to normal traffic by May 20th. The project area mainly consists of 

Evergreen Road between Beverly Rd and 14 Mile. 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 17, 2022 – PAGE 11 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

SEMCOG's Water Infrastructure Task Force - This afternoon, I attended SEMCOG's Water Task 

Force's working group meeting on "Drinking Water and Wastewater." As members of the Task 

Force, Council Member Abboud and I are also set to attend the Task Force's next meeting on June 

9, 2022. 

 

Goddard School Site Development - Representatives from Goddard School, the contractors, HRC, 

and Village staff met for a pre-construction meeting this morning. The development project is 

occurring at the old McDonald's site on Southfield Road, just north of the Beverly Hills Club and 

Health Quest Physical Therapy Facility. We will update you further when we have more complete 

project details.  

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Abboud stated that SEMCOG has funding available for planning assistance. He said that rental 

permits are required under the Municipal Code. He is looking forward to attending the Memorial 

Day Parade and Carnival.  
 

Mooney welcomed Village Manager Campbell and wished him the best. He stated the Council has 

the best interest of the Village at heart. He regretfully informed everyone that the former labor 

attorney, Dennis DuBay recently passed away. He thanked him for his work on behalf of the 

Village. He stated that he visited the sculpture at Riverside Park and encourages everyone to view 

it.  

 

Hrydziuszko said that the second sculpture was recently installed at Beverly Park and told residents 

to look up when entering the park to see it. She thanked Expert Tree Service for installing the 

sculpture in the tree. She thanked the Parks & Recreation Board for their work on the Sculptures 

program, Java & Jazz, and the tree planting event. There is a Parks & Recreation Board meeting 

on Thursday, May 19 at 7:30 p.m. at the Beverly Park Pavilion and volunteers are welcome to help 

out with parks events.  

 

George stated that the tree planting and Java & Jazz events had awesome turn outs. He encouraged 

everyone to view the sculptures at the parks. He welcomed Campbell. He thanked Rutkowski for 

her work as Interim Manager.  

 

CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS COLLECTION BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

NEGOTIATIONS 

 

The following Resolution was offered by Mooney with support from Hrydziuszko to adopt 

the following resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, at the regular Village Council Meeting held on Tuesday, May 17, 2022, 

Village Council desires to go into closed session to discuss negotiations for a collective 

bargaining agreement.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Village of Beverly Hills hereby agrees 

to meet in Closed Session, as permitted by the Open Meeting Act MCL 15.268(c) 

immediately following the completion of the Regular Meeting held on Tuesday, May 17th, 

2022, at 11:15 p.m., Michigan Time, at the Village of Beverly Hills, 18500 W. Thirteen 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MAY 17, 2022 – PAGE 12 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Mile Road, Beverly Hills, Michigan, 48025.  The purpose of the Closed Session is to 

discuss negotiations for a collective bargaining agreement.  

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

The Village Council entered Closed Session at 11:15 p.m. 

 

The regular Village Council meeting resumed at 11:43 p.m. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Mooney, second by Hrydziuszko, to adjourn the meeting at 11:44 p.m.  

 

Motion passed.  

 

 

 

 

John George     Kristin Rutkowski   

Council President    Village Clerk   



TO PRESIDENT GEORGE & MEMBERS OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL.   THE FOLLOWING IS A LIST OF

EXPENDITURES FOR APPROVAL.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE RUN FROM 05/10/2022 THROUGH 06/06/2022.

ACCOUNT TOTALS:

101 GENERAL FUND $191,455.60

202 MAJOR ROAD FUND $19,955.58

203 LOCAL STREET FUND $35,128.65

205 PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT FUND $186,913.90

208 PARK IMPROVEMENT FUND $1,029.98

268 LIBRARY FUND $130,738.50

285 RETIREE HEALTH CARE FUND $6,879.81

592 WATER/SEWER OPERATION FUND $304,640.62

701 TRUST & AGENCY FUND $708.43

TOTAL $877,451.07

MANUAL CHECKS- COMERICA $0.00

MANUAL CHECKS- INDEPENDENT $0.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $877,451.07

GRAND TOTAL $877,451.07

C3-4



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 1/2Page: 06/03/2022 01:43 PM
User: JAY
DB: Beverly Hills

CHECK DATE FROM 05/10/2022 - 06/06/2022

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank COM COMERICA

100.00 AIDAN RITO6063685298COM05/23/2022
1,214.00 ALLIANCE MOBILE HEALTH5116085299COM05/23/2022

296.23 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES6021785300COM05/23/2022
542.08 APOLLO FIRE APPARATUS3116485301COM05/23/2022
151.32 APPLIED IMAGING5328485302COM05/23/2022
250.00 ARMANDO TABORGA6063385303COM05/23/2022
197.58 ARROW OFFICE SUPPLY CO.5180285304COM05/23/2022

130,738.50 BALDWIN PUBLIC LIBRARY0210085305COM05/23/2022
179.13 BEVERLY HILLS ACE5140985306COM05/23/2022
250.00 BEVERLY MCCOTTER5091385307COM05/23/2022

38,812.36 BLUE CARE NETWORK3086185308COM05/23/2022
33,966.92 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD5207185309COM05/23/2022

275.00 BUDGET BOUNCE, LLC.6062685310COM05/23/2022
594.00 C & N PARTY RENTALS6062885311COM05/23/2022
550.00 CAROUSEL ACRES, INC.6062985312COM05/23/2022
298.76 CATHY WHITE5859785313COM05/23/2022
250.00 CHRISTOPHER CHRISTOFF6063085314COM05/23/2022
54.68 CINTAS CORPORATION #315934785315COM05/23/2022
300.00 CITI ROOFINGMISC85316COM05/23/2022

11,189.30 CMP DISTRIBUTORS3090985317COM05/23/2022
17,627.74 COALITION OF PUBLIC SAFETY3192585318COM05/23/2022

101.85 COMCAST5143985319COM05/23/2022
31,082.71 COMEAU EQUIPMENT CO INC.0450085320COM05/23/2022
1,759.10 CONSUMERS ENERGY5082685321COM05/23/2022

300.00 CORINNE MARTEL YANOSYMISC85322COM05/23/2022
250.00 DAVID CHEKAL6041885323COM05/23/2022
300.00 DRY BASEMENT PLUS LLCMISC85324COM05/23/2022
250.00 ERIN HITCHCOCK6042185325COM05/23/2022

5,423.54 EXXONMOBIL3122885326COM05/23/2022
250.00 GINA OLIVER6063585327COM05/23/2022
994.74 GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY6020685328COM05/23/2022

6,895.92 GUARDIAN5358385329COM05/23/2022
714.00 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0850085330COM05/23/2022
906.00 ICMA MEMBERSHIP RENEWALS3105285331COM05/23/2022
12.45 IMS ALLIANCE5972485332COM05/23/2022
210.00 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY3907085333COM05/23/2022
320.00 JAMES HEALY5942385334COM05/23/2022
316.03 JANICE HAUSMAN5110185335COM05/23/2022

4,120.00 JASON'S OUTDOOR SERVICES LLC5915885336COM05/23/2022
629.16 JAX KAR WASH3308385337COM05/23/2022
451.08 JCR SUPPLY, INC. 5932485338COM05/23/2022
250.00 JEANETTE WATER6063485339COM05/23/2022
25.00 KATHY TARNOW5940585340COM05/23/2022
613.70 KELLER THOMA0930085341COM05/23/2022
300.00 KROLL CONSTRUCTIONMISC85342COM05/23/2022
270.00 LANG'S ON-SITE SERVICES5331685343COM05/23/2022

1,135.00 LESLIE TIRE6062785344COM05/23/2022
150.00 LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS 5179285345COM05/23/2022
975.10 LOU'S TRANSPORT INC.5135085346COM05/23/2022
363.78 LYNN PEAVEY COMPANY5048885347COM05/23/2022
200.00 MARC BOURASSA5148485348COM05/23/2022
71.67 MARGARET A.S. BEKE5911685349COM05/23/2022
145.10 MATTHEW GOODRICH5970385350COM05/23/2022
125.00 MICHIGAN GRAPHICS & AWARDS5203085351COM05/23/2022
217.50 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL EXECUTIVES 1180085352COM05/23/2022
250.50 MIKE SAVOIE CHEVROLET 5933085353COM05/23/2022

55,616.00 MML WORKERS' COMP FUND 5932285354COM05/23/2022
338.00 MUNIWEB5890385355COM05/23/2022
239.00 NELSON BROTHERS SEWER &5118285356COM05/23/2022
252.00 NYE UNIFORM EAST5179985357COM05/23/2022
250.00 NYLU VELLANKI5948285358COM05/23/2022
50.22 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS5154085359COM05/23/2022

36,868.33 O.C.W.R.C.5175185360COM05/23/2022
549.00 PLAY 1ST MOBILE GAMING6062185361COM05/23/2022

1,250.00 PRM CUSTOM BUILDERS LLCMISC85362COM05/23/2022
350.00 PUBLIC AGENCY TRAINING COUNCIL5146585363COM05/23/2022
59.99 RAPID RESPONSE5912285364COM05/23/2022
279.99 RAY WIEGAND'S NURSERY6059585365COM05/23/2022
250.00 REBECCA COLLINS6063185366COM05/23/2022
863.36 ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND1610085367COM05/23/2022
200.00 ROMA CEMENTMISC85368COM05/23/2022
300.00 ROOFING & BEYONDMISC85369COM05/23/2022

31,224.00 S.O.C.R.R.A.1650085370COM05/23/2022
30,688.44 SAFEBUILT INC. 5928285371COM05/23/2022

700.00 SAUTER BALLOONS6061585372COM05/23/2022
300.00 SCHOENHERR HOMESMISC85373COM05/23/2022
600.00 SCHOENHERR HOMESMISC85374COM05/23/2022
250.00 SONIA WEBBER6063285375COM05/23/2022



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 2/2Page: 06/03/2022 01:43 PM
User: JAY
DB: Beverly Hills

CHECK DATE FROM 05/10/2022 - 06/06/2022

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

200.00 SUBURBAN BASEMENTMISC85376COM05/23/2022
1,200.00 SUNSET MAINTENANCE SERVICE1770085377COM05/23/2022
1,000.00 T & F CONSTRUCTION INCMISC85378COM05/23/2022
2,763.55 ULINE5112385379COM05/23/2022

406.26 VERIZON WIRELESS MESSAGING3820585380COM05/23/2022
5,000.00 VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS1480085381COM05/23/2022

124.00 WILLIAM COLE JR.6062385382COM05/23/2022
5,739.50 ZIP ETC INC2090085383COM05/23/2022

96.00 ADVANCED SECURITY & FIRE5873185384COM06/06/2022
296.00 ALLIANCE MOBILE HEALTH5116085385COM06/06/2022

4,137.61 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES6021785386COM06/06/2022
250.00 ANNE NAVARRE5919285387COM06/06/2022
16.16 APPLIED IMAGING5328485388COM06/06/2022
618.02 ARROW OFFICE SUPPLY CO.5180285389COM06/06/2022
250.00 B.P.S.6065485390COM06/06/2022

6.23 BADGER METER INC0200085391COM06/06/2022
362.00 BARBARA TOBABEN6065385392COM06/06/2022
859.96 BELLE TIRE3092085393COM06/06/2022

1,000.00 BRIAN FERRIBY6064185394COM06/06/2022
250.00 CAROL GROMBALA5138185395COM06/06/2022
250.00 CAROL MUSCAT6064685396COM06/06/2022
250.00 CINDI HAMMER6064785397COM06/06/2022
151.73 CINTAS CORPORATION #315934785398COM06/06/2022
858.00 CLEANNET5932385399COM06/06/2022

4,725.00 CMP DISTRIBUTORS3090985400COM06/06/2022
262.10 COMCAST5143985401COM06/06/2022

31,586.01 COMEAU EQUIPMENT CO INC.0450085402COM06/06/2022
2,204.76 DETROIT SALT COMPANY5202585403COM06/06/2022

180.00 EAGLE LANDSCAPING & SUPPLY6037285404COM06/06/2022
2,500.00 ENTERPRISE COMPUTER3183085405COM06/06/2022
1,100.00 FRIENDS OF THE ROUGE4988885406COM06/06/2022
1,958.45 GEI CONSULTANTS, INC.6061185407COM06/06/2022

600.00 GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SVCS.5348985408COM06/06/2022
1,000.00 HELENA HIERTA6064285409COM06/06/2022

270.07 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 3120285410COM06/06/2022
20,733.80 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0850085411COM06/06/2022

347.54 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0850085412COM06/06/2022
290.00 HYDROCORP5895085413COM06/06/2022
57.63 J.C. EHRLICH5983985414COM06/06/2022
480.00 JAMES HEALY5942385415COM06/06/2022
64.58 JANET MAKRIS6063985416COM06/06/2022
115.32 JENNIFER RUPRICH5077085417COM06/06/2022
250.00 JESSICA HABLI6065285418COM06/06/2022

1,000.00 JIM WOLNOSKY6064385419COM06/06/2022
1,000.00 KELLY O'NEILL6064085420COM06/06/2022

250.00 KIMBERLY ANDREN6065085421COM06/06/2022
250.00 KIMBERLY EBERHARDT6064585422COM06/06/2022

1,377.00 KNOX6063885423COM06/06/2022
850.00 KRAV MAGA WORLDWIDE5144385424COM06/06/2022
74.16 LYNN PEAVEY COMPANY5048885425COM06/06/2022
134.16 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE5961485426COM06/06/2022

2,237.32 MIKE SAVOIE CHEVROLET 5933085427COM06/06/2022
168.92 MILES HAENGGI6060685428COM06/06/2022
44.91 MOLLY BORGON5905585429COM06/06/2022
920.00 NELSON BROTHERS SEWER &5118285430COM06/06/2022
250.00 NICHOLAS PETCOFF6065185431COM06/06/2022
20.00 NYE UNIFORM EAST5179985432COM06/06/2022
76.68 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS5154085433COM06/06/2022

205,367.10 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER'S5083085434COM06/06/2022
50.00 PRESSURE VESSEL TESTING5970985435COM06/06/2022
832.00 RELEAF MICHIGAN6037085436COM06/06/2022

1,097.99 ROBERT GINTHER5045185437COM06/06/2022
109.00 ROCKET ENTERPRISE INC. 5939685438COM06/06/2022
600.00 RYAN BILLS6049585439COM06/06/2022

35,451.00 S.O.C.R.R.A.1650085440COM06/06/2022
53,719.87 S.O.C.W.A.1660085441COM06/06/2022

428.00 SIGNS & MORE5976385442COM06/06/2022
250.00 SLOANE SCHOTTENHEIMER JAMESON6064485443COM06/06/2022
250.00 SONJA GORDON6064885444COM06/06/2022
265.00 SOUTHFIELD POSTAL SERVICE3814585445COM06/06/2022

1,500.00 SUBURBAN CALCIUM CHLORIDE3887585446COM06/06/2022
9,750.00 THOMAS J RYAN PC.3104385447COM06/06/2022
2,527.00 TORFINO ENTERPRISES6063785448COM06/06/2022
1,245.82 WOW! BUSINESS5357285449COM06/06/2022

850.00 ZIP ETC INC2090085450COM06/06/2022

COM TOTALS:

877,451.07 Total of 153 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
877,451.07 Total of 153 Checks:



C5 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 

From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: ITP 5K at Beverly Park on September 10, 2022 
 
Date:   May 24, 2022 
 
Administration received a request on behalf of the Platelet Disorder Support Association to hold their 

annual ITP 5K Walk at Beverly Park on Saturday, September 10, 2022.  ITP, or immune thrombocytopenia, 

is a blood disorder that can lead to easy or excessive bruising and bleeding. The bleeding results from 

unusually low levels of platelets, which are the cells that help blood clot.  The Platelet Disorder Support 

Association is dedicated to enhancing the lives of people with ITP and other platelet disorders through 

education, advocacy, research, and support. 

The Parks & Recreation Board and Council previously approved a 5K request from this group last year and 

it was a successful event.  

The group is requesting to hold their 5K at Beverly Park from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. They have already 

reserved the pavilion for this date/time.  

A certificate of liability insurance naming the Village of Beverly Hills as an additional insured has been 

submitted to the Village Clerk’s Office.  

At their May 19th meeting, the Parks & Recreation Board recommended that Council approve this request.  

 

Recommended Motion: 

The Beverly Hills Village Council approves the request from the Platelet Disorder Support Association to 

hold the ITP 5K at Beverly Park on Saturday, September 10, 2022 from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. provided 

that a certificate of liability insurance naming the Village of Beverly Hills as an additional insured is 

submitted to the Village Clerk’s Office prior to the event.  

 
 
 



C6 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: BPS 5K at Beverly Park 
 
Date:   June 1, 2022 
 
The Village received the attached request from Birmingham Public Schools Physical Education Department 
requesting use of Beverly Park on Saturday, October 8, 2022 from 8:00-10:00 a.m. for their 5th Grade 
Physical Education Run. They also requested use of the pavilion and that the pavilion fees be waived for 
their event.  
 
At their May 19, 2022 meeting, the Parks & Recreation Board recommended that Council approve BPS’ 
request.  
 
The date/time does not conflict with any other scheduled events.  
 
Suggested Resolution: 
Be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council approves Birmingham Public Schools Physical Education 
Department’s request to hold their 5th Grade Physical Education Run at Beverly Park on Saturday, October 
8, 2022 from 8:00-10:00 a.m. and waives the pavilion rental fees for this event provided that a Certificate 
of Liability Insurance naming the Village of Beverly Hills as an additional insured be submitted to the 
Clerk’s Office prior to the event.  
 
 
Attachment 
 
 



 

     

 

GREENFIELD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
                          

                                                      Derek DiGiovanni 

BPS K-12 Physical Education Facilitator &Physical Education Teacher 

31200 Fairfax Avenue • Beverly Hills, Michigan 48025 

                                                                                                       ddigiovanni@birmingham.k12.mi.us       

 

 

 

 

Birmingham Public Schools Physical Education Department 

To: Beverly Hills Parks & Recreation Board 

From:  Derek DiGiovanni 

CC:  Janice Hausman 

Date: May 18, 2022 

Re: Proposal to use Beverly Park on October 8, 2022 

Comments: • We would like to use Beverly Park for our 4th Annual BPS 5th Grade Physical Education 

Run on October 8, 2022 from 8am-10am.  There are usually around 150 students that 

participate and at least 150-200 spectators.  We would hope to use the pavilion with the 

bathrooms for check in and then we can create a course from whatever open space is 

available to use.  We respectfully ask the board to consider waiving the pavilion rental fee 

for this event.  The course will stay within the boundaries of the park.   

 

Sincerely, 

 
Derek DiGiovanni 

 

Derek DiGiovanni 

BPS K-12 Physical Education Facilitator & Physical Education Teacher 

 



C7 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: 5-Year Community Recreation Plan Survey 
 
Date:   June 2, 2022 
 
The Parks & Recreation Board is working to update the Village’s 5-Year Community Recreation Plan. This 
plan will provide community parks & recreation objectives for the years 2023-2028. Submitting the plan 
to the Michigan Department of Natural Resources makes the Village eligible for grant opportunities 
through the DNR.  
 
One of the most important components of the 5-Year Plan is gathering community feedback. The Parks & 
Recreation Board and Administration have worked to create a survey to distribute to residents to gather 
their input on parks & recreation in the Village of Beverly Hills.  
 
The Parks & Recreation Board is recommending that Council approve their request to distribute the survey 
to community members to gather feedback for the 5-Year Community Recreation Plan. The survey link 
will be available on the Village website, in the weekly email blasts, and on social media.  The Board will 
also make an effort to increase participation by sharing a QR Code linked to the survey at businesses and 
organizations around the community.  
 
A list of primary questions is attached for Council’s review. There are also follow up questions associated 
with many of the primary questions that allow respondents to elaborate on their answers. The online 
survey format costs about $60.00 per month and will be live for about one month. There will also be paper 
copies available at the Village Office for residents who would like to complete the survey in that format.  
 
Suggested Motion: 
The Beverly Hills Village Council approves the Parks & Recreation Board’s recommendation to distribute 
the 5-Year Community Recreation plan to community members.  
 
 
 
Attachment  
 



Beverly Hills Parks and Recreation 5-Year Plan Survey Questions

1. Thank you for participating in the Beverly Hills Parks & Recreation 5-Year Plan Survey! To
begin, are you a current resident of the Village of Beverly Hills, Michigan?

2. Please tell us which Beverly Hills street you live on?
a. As a non-resident interested in Beverly Hills Parks, please tell us what town or city within

which you reside:
3. How long have you lived in Beverly Hills?
4. How many members of your household are 0-6 years old?
5. How many members of your household are 7-12 years old?
6. How many members of your household are 13-18 years old?
7. How many members of your household are 19-24 years old?
8. How many members of your household are 25-40 years old?
9. How many members of your household are 41-55 years old?
10. How many members of your household are 56+ years old?
11. Do one or more dogs live with your family?
12. Do you bring your dog(s) to any Beverly Hills Parks?
13. How could Beverly Hills Parks become more pet friendly?

Parks Feedback Questions.  Each of the following questions also asks 1.) If the named asset
meets expectations, and 2.) Requests suggestions for improvement:

14. On an average monthly basis, how frequently do you visit Beverly Park?
15. How often does your family utilize the Baseball / Softball Fields within Beverly Park?
16. How often does your family utilize the Basketball Court within Beverly Park?
17. How often does your family utilize the Tennis Courts within Beverly Park?
18. How often does your family utilize the Sand Volleyball Court within Beverly Park?
19. How often does your family utilize the Beverly Park Pavilion?
20. Have you ever reserved the Pavilion for a private event?
21. How often does your family utilize the Playground within Beverly Park?
22. How often does your family utilize the Sledding Hill within Beverly Park?
23. How often does your family utilize the Ice Rink within Beverly Park?
24. How often does your family utilize the Horseshoe Pits within Beverly Park?
25. How often does your family utilize the Ping Pong Table within Beverly Park?
26. How often does your family utilize the Chess Table within Beverly Park?
27. How often does your family utilize the Exercise Equipment within Beverly Park?
28. How often does your family utilize the Storybook Trail within Beverly Park?
29. How often does your family utilize the Disc Golf Course within Beverly Park?
30. On an average monthly basis, how frequently do you visit Douglas Evans Nature Preserve?
31. On an average monthly basis, how frequently do you visit Riverside Park?
32. On an average monthly basis, how frequently do you visit Beverly Green?
33. On an average monthly basis, how frequently do you visit Hidden Rivers?

Event Specific Questions:
34. How frequently has your household attended the Memorial Day Parade?
35. How frequently has your household attended Movie in the Park?
36. How frequently has your household attended the Halloween Hoot?
37. How frequently has your household attended Winter Family Fun Days / Sledding?
38. How frequently has your household attended Java and Jazz?



39. How frequently has your household attended Concerts in the Park?
40. How frequently has your household participated in the Spring Park Clean-Up?
41. How frequently has your household participated in Tree Plantings?
42. How frequently has your household attended Read in the Park?
43. Did you enjoy any of the Detroit Institute of Arts Inside|Out Program art installations at various

Beverly Hills parks in May through October of 2021?
44. Did you participate in the DIA Inside|Out Bike Ride on July 22, 2021?
45. Will you seek out all or some of the sculptures installed at Beverly Hills parks as part of the

inaugural "Sculptures in the Parks" exhibit?
Invasive Species Questions:

46. Are you aware of the recent, significant efforts by the Village of Beverly Hills, in conjunction with
OC CISMA to remove invasive species from Beverly Hills parks?

47. Do you support the continued removal of invasive plant species  from Beverly Hills Parks and
efforts to restore native understory plants where invasive species have been removed?

General Feedback Formatted Questions:
48. What potential additions (large or small) to Parks infrastructure do you think would benefit our

community?
49. What potential special events hosted on Parks property do you think would further benefit our

community?
Parks & Recreation Future Participation Questions:

50. Do you have interest in volunteering at Beverly Hills Parks and Recreation events?
51. Would you like to be notified regarding opportunities to partially underwrite significant

improvement projects at Beverly Hills Parks?
52. Would you like to be notified regarding sponsorship/marketing opportunities at future Beverly

Hills Parks and Recreation events?



C8 

 
 

Resolution Recognizing June 2022 as LGBTQ+ Pride Month  

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Beverly Hills, MI cherishes the value and dignity of each person and 

appreciates the importance of equality and freedom; and  

 

WHEREAS, all are welcome in the Village of Beverly Hills, MI to live, work, play, and every 

family, in any shape, deserves a place to call home where they are safe, happy, and supported 

by friends and neighbors; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Beverly Hills, MI denounces prejudice and unfair discrimination based 

on age, gender identity, gender expression, race, color, religion, marital status, national origin, 

sexual orientation, or physical attributes as an affront to our fundamental principles; and  

 

WHEREAS, Pride month began in June of 1969 on the one-year anniversary of the Stonewall 

Uprising in New York City after LGBTQ+ and allied friends rose up and fought against the 

constant police harassment and discriminatory laws that have since been declared 

unconstitutional; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Beverly Hills, MI appreciate the cultural, civic, and economic 

contributions of lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer, plus (LGBTQ+) community which 

strengthen our social welfare; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is imperative that young people in our community, regardless of sexual 

orientation, gender identity, and expression, feel valued, safe, empowered, and supported by 

their peers and community leaders; and  

 

WHEREAS, despite being marginalized, LGBTQ+ people continue to celebrate authenticity, 

acceptance, and love.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council recognizes the month of 

June 2022 as LGBTQ+ Pride Month in the Village of Beverly Hills, MI and urges residents to 

recognize the contributions made by members of the LGBTQ+ community and to actively 

promote the principles of equality, liberty, and justice.  



B1 

M E M O 
 

 To: Honorable President George; Members of Village Council  
 

From: Jeff Campbell, Village Manager 
 

Re:        14 Mile Road and Sidewalk Project 

Date:  June 3, 2022 

_____________________________________________       

At the May 3, 2022 Council Meeting, the Council approved a bid of $1,537,817 to complete 
asphalt pavement repairs on 14 Mile between Evergreen and Cranbrook.  The project also 
included the installation of a sidewalk on the south side of 14 Mile Road.  Recently, the Village 
discovered that certain engineering costs and a contingency were not contained in the FY 2023 
Budget numbers.  Those costs will exceed the amount budgeted for the in Major Road Fund for 
the Project.   
 
As of this date, the Village has not signed the contract with the contractor, and it is my 
understanding that the Agreement allows for changes to work.  The Village Attorney is confirming 
that understanding to make sure the scope of work can be altered. 
 
Work on the project is scheduled to begin the third week of June, and the Council will need to 
determine whether it intends to move forward with the current scope of work or an altered scope 
of work.  Attached are estimated budget numbers for completing the project with the road and 
sidewalk and completing just the road project. 
 
 



14 Mile Road & Sidewalk Budget Information

Road & Sidewalk Road Only

Village Budget

Evergreen Road & Sidewalk - Construction/Engineering - FY22 200,000                   200,000              

Evergreen Road & Sidewalk - Construction/Engineering - FY23 1,537,817                1,537,817           

14 Mile Road Engineering (in 202-482-810.01) 60,000                     60,000                

Total 14 Mile Road Projects/Engineering Costs Budgeted 1,797,817               1,797,817           

HRC Estimate of Total Project Cost

Reduction to remove on-site monitoring from bid 98,000                     98,000                

Construction - Net - Road/Sidewalk per Contractor Quote 1,439,817                1,439,817           

Removal of Sidewalks (422,613)             

  

Engineering Costs per HRC

22% of Project total

7% for Design Engineering - Completed 109,515                   109,515

15% - 18% for Site/Construction Engineering 255,000                   255,500

-                            

Total 364,515                   364,515

10% Contingency per HRC (10% of Construction Costs) 143,982                   101,720              

Total Project Cost Estimate per HRC 1,948,314               1,483,439           

Unbudgeted FY23 (including Contingency) (150,497)                 314,378              

Less Contingency 143,982                   101,720              

Unbudgeted FY23 (excluding Contingency) (6,515)                      416,098              



VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT  

JEFF CAMPBELL 

June 7, 2022 

 

 

 

Interim DPW Director – While we are still seeking a new, permanent DPW Director, the Village 

hired an Interim Director, Tom Trice.  Mr. Trice is the former DPW Director for Bloomfield Township 

and the City of Royal Oak.  He has over 50 years of experience working with neighboring local 

governments.  Mr. Trice will assist the Village with our summer projects, addressing residents’ 

concerns/questions and assisting the Administration in the hiring of the permanent DPW Director.   

 

July Newsletter – An extra Village Newsletter will be going out at the end of June or early July 

that will explain the required increases to the Village’s water rates and debt services, informing 

residents of these changes.  We will also include links to the information on the Village website 

and Facebook.   

 

Construction Updates – Weather permitting, work on 14 Mile Road will likely be starting before 

the end of June.  Additional updates will be posted on the Village’s website and Facebook page.   

Further, weather permitting, the Beverly Park Pathway Improvements Project will begin and be 

completed by the end of this week.  The Park Pathway Improvement Project consists of the 

installation and grading of the trails and the installation of pipes along the trails and four 

maintenance basins. Please be advised that there have been several trucks parking next to the 

water tower on Kirkshire.  Those trucks belong to a contractor who is performing work for a 

Consumers Energy project in the Village.   

 

Updated Stormwater Planning Standards – Administration will be participating in an Oakland 

County gathering on the County’s updated stormwater standards as they relate to planning 

considerations needed early in the site planning process.  Stormwater management is an 

important part of site development.  The earlier stormwater is considered in the planning process, 

the easier it is to incorporate stormwater management practices on the site.  WRC and many 

communities recently updated their post-construction stormwater standards in conjunction with 

the separate storm water sewer system (MS4) permit renewal.    

 

Memorial Day Parade, Ceremony and Festivities – Thank you to all the employees, volunteers, 

parade participants, and residents for coming out to celebrate Memorial Day and remember the 

service men and women who died in service to our country. 

 

     



Beverly Hills Public Safety 
Activity Report 

May 12th- June 1st  2022   

 

• The Public Safety Department is currently 
looking for applicants for Public Safety 
Officer.  Please visit our website, 
www.beverlyhillspolice.com to see if you 
qualify. 

• The Memorial Day parade was a success. 
Thanks to everyone who worked the event. 
Thanks for the residents who came out. 

• Please, lock your cars doors and do not 
leave your fob or keys in your car. 

 

CALLS FOR SERVICE 

•   384 Calls for Service. 

•   93 Tickets issued. 

•   11 Arrests  

• Greenfield School student drop off. 

• Medical on Beverly Court. 

• Road Hazard complaint on Buckingham and Pierce. 

• Mental Health Call at Groves High School. 

• Greenfield School student pick up. 

• Radar Detail on Birwood Street. 

• Lift Assist on Lincolnshire Street. 

• Wires Down on Churchill Drive. 

• Parking Complaint on 14 Mile and Robinhood. 

• Beverly School student drop off. 

• Radar Detail at Lahser and Hillview. 

• Medical on Kirkshire Drive. 

• Retail Fraud on Southfield Road. 

• Traffic Enforcement on Evergreen and Wilshire. 

• Area Check for a reported Stolen Auto in the area of 
Lahser and 14 Mile Road. 

• Extra Patrol requested at BP Gas Station. 

• Reckless Driver complaint on Lahser and 14 Mile. 

• Medical at Mission Point. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Birwood and Greenfield. 

http://www.beverlyhillspolice.com/


• Road Hazard removed at 14 Mile and Old Post. 

• Assist Southfield PD with traffic accident at 13 Mile 
and Southfield. 

• School Liaison Detail for Groves High School Prom. 

• Reckless Driving at Greenfield School. 

• Welfare Check on 14 Mile Road. 

• Beverly Park closed down for the night. 

• Extra Patrol at BP Gas Station. 

• Extra Patrol at Market Fresh after hours. 

• Assist Birmingham PD with Traffic Accident at 14 Mile 
and Evergreen. 

• Reckless Driving at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Alarm on Valley Ridge Drive. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Birmingham and Beverly. 

• Neighborhood Trouble on Sheridan Street. 

• Traffic Enforcement on Beaconsfield and Saxon. 

• Alarm at Groves High School. 

• Injury Traffic Accident at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Assist Franklin PD with a residential alarm on 13 Mile. 

• Medical on Long Bow Court. 

• Parking Complaint at Beverly Park. 

• Public Relations at a block Party on Nottingham. 

• Loose Dog Complaint at Groves High School. 

• A vehicle was stopped for defective equipment at 13 
Mile and Southfield. The driver was found to be 
suspended and was taken into custody without 
incident. The vehicle was impounded and the subject 
was cited & released at the scene. 

• Loud Party complaint on Carlelder and Beverly Road. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Radar Detail at Lahser and 13 Mile. 

• 911 Hang Up welfare Check on Wendbrook Lane. 

• Loud Noise Complaint on Nottingham and Robinhood. 

• Fire Alarm on Kinross Street. 

• Public relations at Beverly Park Jazz Festival. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Birmingham and Beverly. 

• Citizen Assist on Birwood Street. 

• Parking Complaint on Bates and Beverly. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Birwood and Greenfield. 

• Animal Complaint at Lahser and Orchard way. 

• Medical on Kirkshire Street. 

• Fire truck Checks at the station. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Welfare Check at 13 Mile and Lahser. 



• Greenfield School student drop off. 

• Radar Detail on Birwood Street. 

• Groves High School extra patrol. 

• Parking Complaint at Kirkshire and Southfield. 

• A reckless driving complaint was called in and the 
suspected vehicle was located at 13 Mile and Pierce. 
The driver displayed signs of visible intoxication and 
then failed multiple sobriety tests. The driver was 
arrested for driving under the influence and had a 
minor child in the vehicle at the time. The child was 
turned over to their guardian and the vehicle was 
impounded. The subject was transported to Royal 
Oak Beaumont Hospital without incident for 
detoxification. 

• Miscellaneous Report at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Greenfield School student pick up. 

• Radar Detail on Birwood Street. 

• Medical at the Police Station. 

• Radar Detail at Stafford and 13 Mile. 

• Injury Traffic Accident at 13 Mile and Rutland. 

• Traffic Accident on Buckingham Street. 

• Wires Down on Churchill and 13 Mile. 

• Medical on Old Coach Road. 

• Citizen Assist at Mission Point. 

• Medical on Robinhood Street. 

• Medical on Chelton Drive. 

• Traffic enforcement at 13 Mile and Southfield Road. 

• Greenfield School student drop off. 

• Medical on Hillview Street. 

• Found Wallet turned into the station. 

• Extra Patrol at Groves High School. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly Park. 

• Odor of Natural gas investigation on Rutland. 

• Medical on Elwood Street. 

• Traffic Accident on Lahser and 13 Mile Road. 

• Greenfield School student pick up. 

• Suspicious Circumstance in Huntley Square 
Apartments. 

• Motorist Assist at Groves High School. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Lahser and Nottingham. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly Park after hours. 

• Chimney Fire/Smoke Investigation on Auburn Street. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Madison and Birwood. 

• Traffic Accident at Birmingham and Buckingham. 



• Traffic Enforcement at Birwood and Greenfield. 

• Public Relations at the Beverly Hills Club. 

• Alarm on 13 Mile Road. 

• Medical on Robinhood Street. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Stafford and 13 Mile Road. 

• Crossing Guard Detail; at Beverly and Southfield. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Birwood and Southfield. 

• Welfare Check on Chelton Drive. 

• Welfare Check on Wilshire Street. 

• Suspicious Circumstances at Southfield and Beverly. 

• Assist Royal Oak PD with a traffic accident at 13 Mile 
and Greenfield Road. 

• Welfare Check on Leemoor Street. 

• Extra Patrol at the Corners Shopping Mall after hours. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly Park after hours. 

• Extra Patrol at Detroit Country Day after hours. 

• Radar Detail on Southfield Road. 

• Traffic Enforcement on Evergreen and Waltham. 

• Area Check in the area of Wentworth and Riverside. 

• Traffic Enforcement on Birwood and Southfield. 

• Beverly School student drop off. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Beaconsfield and Saxon. 

• Radar Detail Lahser and Riverview. 

• Fraud Report taken on Sunnyslope Drive. 

• Traffic Enforcement on Locherbie and Birmingham. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and Stafford. 

• Fleeing and Eluding of a motorcyclist during an 
attempted traffic stop. 

• Extra Patrol on Stafford and Lahser. 

• Extra Patrol in the area of Birwood and Greenfield. 

• Informational Report taken on Robinhood Street. 

• Medical at Mission Point. 

• Suspicious Person at Southfield and 13 Mile. 

• Parking Complaint on Allerton and Beverly. 

• Beverly Park closed down for the night. 

• Disturbing the Peace on Sleepy Hollow. 

• Neighborhood Trouble on Kirkshire Drive. 

• Traffic Enforcement on Lahser and Nottingham. 

• Berkshire School extra patrol after hours. 

• Extra Patrol in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 13 Mile and Greenfield. 

• Alarm at Greenfield School. 

• Citizen Assist on Nottingham Drive. 

• Berkshire School extra patrol after hours. 



• Assist Motorist at Lahser and 14 Mile. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Southfield and Beverly. 

• Odor of Smoke in the area of 14 Mile and Lahser. 

• Suspicious Person at Walmer and Pickwick. 

• Medical at Beverly School. 

• Citizen Assist on Foxrun Drive. 

• Extra Patrol at Groves High School. 

• A vehicle was stopped with no license plate at 
Southfield and Dunblaine. The driver was found to be 
suspended and he was taken into custody without 
incident. The vehicle was impounded and the subject 
was cited & released at the scene. 

• Radar Detail on 13 Mile and Stafford. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Southfield and Beverly. 

• Greenfield School student pick up. 

• Radar Detail on Birwood Street. 

• Assist Citizen on 14 Mile and Lahser. 

• Lift Assist on Eastlady Drive. 

• Traffic Accident on 13 Mile and Lahser. 

• Suspicious Persons on Beverly Road. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Touch A Truck Event at Franklin Bingham School. 

• Odor Investigation on Auburn Street. 

• Medical on Warwick Street. 

• Animal Complaint on Birwood and Madison. 

• Fire Alarm on Lahser Road. 

• Animal Complaint ay 13 Mile and Elwood. 

• Traffic Enforcement on Ronsdale and Evergreen. 

• Harassing Phone Calls report made at the station. 

• Stalking Complaint at Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Alarm on Lahser Road. 

• Assist Bloomfield Township PD at 14 Mile and 
Lahser. 

• Alarm on Lahser Road. 

• Alarm at Groves high School. 

• Alarm on Lahser Road. 

• Traffic Enforcement on Beverly Road. 

• Trouble with a Subject at Mission Point. 

• Alarm on Walmer Street. 

• Road Hazard on Beverly Road. 

• Fire Truck Checks at the station. 

• Beverly Park Closed for the night. 

• Fire Truck Checks continued. 

• Medical on Warwick Street. 



• DCD School extra patrol after hours. 

• Alarm on Lahser Road. 

• Traffic Enforcement on 13 Mile Road. 

• Berkshire School extra patrol after hours. 

• Alarm on Lahser Road. 

• Medical at Mission Point. 

• Suspicious Person on Turnberry Court. 

• Beverly School student drop off. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Birmingham and Beverly. 

• Patrol at Groves High School. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser Road. 

• Lift Assist on Nottingham Street. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Extra Patrol requested on Wendbrook. 

• Extra Patrol at Douglas Evans Park. 

• Animal Complaint on Birwood Street. 

• Prisoner transport at the station. 

• Fraud Report taken at the station. 

• Beverly School student pick up. 

• Extra Patrol request on Stellamar Drive. 

• A vehicle was stopped for defective equipment the 
driver was arrested for suspended license at Auburn 
and Madison. The vehicle was impounded and the 
driver was taken into custody without incident. The 
subject was then cited and released at the scene. 

• Suspicious Person on Rutland Street. 

• Radar Detail at Lahser and 13 Mile Road. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Traffic Detail at 14 Mile and Southfield. 

• Extra Patrol at Acacia Cemetery after hours. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Beverly and Inglewood. 

• Alarm on Carriage Lane. 

• Extra Patrol at Bellvine Trail and 14 Mile. 

• Extra Patrol in the Huntley Subdivision. 

• Extra Patrol at the Medical Village after hours. 

• Injury Accident at Greenfield and Sheridan. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly and Southfield. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Nixon Street. 

• Follow Up Investigation On Kinross. 

• Radar Detail at Waltham and Beverly. 

• Traffic Accident at 13 Mile and Embassy. 

• Neighbor Trouble on Birwood Street. 

• Fire Alarm on Robinhood Street. 



• Radar Detail on 13 Mile and Churchill. 

• Beverly School student pick up. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly and Southfield. 

• Larceny report taken on 13 Mile Road. 

• Extra Patrol at 14 Mile and Pierce Street. 

• Traffic Enforcement on 14 Mile Road. 

• Beverly School student drop off. 

• Greenfield School student drop off. 

• Vehicle Theft reported on Sheridan Street. 

• Beverly Academy student drop off. 

• Detroit Country Day student drop off. 

• Groves High School extra patrol. 

• Stolen Vehicle Recovered from Kirkshire Drive. 

• Malicious Destruction of Property reported on 
Devonshire Street. 

• Extra Patrol at Groves High School. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School. 

• Attempted Suicide on Old Post Road. 

• Found Property reported at the police station. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School. 

• Extra Patrol at Groves High School. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School. 

• Extra Patrol at Berkshire School. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly Hills Academy. 

• Extra Patrol at Detroit Country Day School Upper. 

• Extra Patrol at Detroit Country Day Lower. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School. 

• Extra Patrol at Groves High School. 

• Extra Patrol at Queen of Martyrs School. 

• Medical on Evergreen Road. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School. 

• Suspicious Person at Mission Point. 

• Fraud Report reported at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• PBT at the front desk of the police station. 

• Motorist Assist at 14 Mile and Southfield. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Lahser and Nottingham. 

• Attempted Suicide at Mission Point. 

• Beverly Park closed down for the night. 

• Extra Patrol in Huntley Square Apartments after 
hours. 

• A driver was stopped for failing to dim their high beam 
lights at 14 mile and Bassett Woods Court. The driver 
was found to be suspended and was arrested without 



incident. The vehicle was impounded and the subject 
was cited and released at the scene. 

• Suspicious Person on Amherst and Sheridan. 

• Extra Patrol at Groves High School after hours. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School. 

• Crossing Guard Detail Southfield and Beverly. 

• Greenfield School student drop off. 

• Groves High School extra patrol. 

• Queen of Martyrs extra patrol. 

• Berkshire School extra patrol. 

• A vehicle was stopped for an improper license plate at 
Southfield and 13 Mile. The plate was confiscated and 
the driver was cited. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Extra Patrol at Groves High School. 

• Suspicious Person on Riverview Drive. 

• Extra Patrol at Berkshire School. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School. 

• Motorist Assist at Southfield and Beverly. 

• Extra Patrol requested on Robinhood. 

• Another extra patrol requested on Robinhood. 

• Medical on Kirkshire Street. 

• Alarm at Berkshire School after hours. 

• Stolen Vehicle Recovered on Kinross Street. 

• Suspects in the recent stolen vehicle incident fled 
from responding officers at a high rate of speed. 
Officers terminated the pursuit due to the suspect’s 
high rate of speed. 

• Beverly School student drop off. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly and Southfield. 

• Traffic Detail at Saxon and Beaconsfield. 

• Disturbing the Peace at Mission Point. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly Hills Academy. 

• Park Check at Douglas Evans Park. 

• Welfare Check on Kirkshire and Southfield. 

• Fire Alarm on Glenhill Court. 

• Alarm on Glencoe Street. 

• Medical on Beverly Road. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School. 

• Vehicle Lockout on 13 Mile Road. 

• A driver was stopped for disobeying a stop sign at 
Beverly Road and Auburn. The driver was found to be 



revoked and was taken into custody without incident. 
The vehicle was impounded and the subject was cited 
& released at the scene. 

• An informational report was taken at the police 
station. 

• A vehicle was stopped for an expired plate at 14 Mile 
and Greenfield Road. The driver admitted to never 
having owned a driver’s license and he was taken into 
custody without incident. The vehicle was impounded 
and the subject was cited and released at the scene. 

• Beverly Park was closed for the night. 

• Extra Patrol in the area of Madison and Birwood. 

• A vehicle was stopped for an expired license plate at 
Southfield and Birwood. The driver had never 
acquired a driver’s license and he was taken into 
custody without incident. The vehicle was impounded 
and the subject was cited & released at the scene. 

• Extra Patrol in the area of Kirkshire and Birmingham. 

• Suspicious Person on Norchester Street. 

• Suspicious Person at Beverly Park. 

• Medical on Nottingham Drive. 

• Extra Patrol at Queen of Martyrs School. 

• Extra Patrol on Rutland Street. 

• Juvenile traffic complaint on Southfield and Birwood. 

• Suspicious Person on Locherbie Street. 

• Extra Patrol at Queen of Martyrs School. 

• Animal Complaint at Southfield and Kinross. 

• Animal Complaint on Ronsdale. 

• Neighbor Trouble on Wetherby. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Beaconsfield and Saxon. 

• Hit and Run Traffic Accident on Beverly Road. 

• Stolen Vehicle reported on Vernon Drive. 

• Extra Patrol at Birwood and Greenfield. 

• Animal Complaint on 14 Mile and Bates. 

• Animal Complaint on Kirkshire. 

• Suspicious Circumstances at Groves High School. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Southfield and Beverly. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Extra Patrol at Norchester and Bedford. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield and Buckingham. 

• Extra Patrol at Pierce and 14 Mile Road. 

• Extra Patrol at 14 Mile and Bates Road. 

• Traffic Enforcement on Southfield Road. 

• Noise Complaint at Woodside Athletic Club. 

• Medical on Verona Circle. 



• Fire Truck Checks at the station. 

• Larceny of a purse reported at T.J. Maxx. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Beverly and Birmingham 
Street. 

• Alarm on Dunblaine Street. 

• A subject was arrested for a traffic warrant and taken 
into custody without incident on Locherbie Street. The 
subject was released after paying bond and receiving 
a court appearance date. 

• Fire alarm on Buttonwood Court. 

• Suspicious Circumstance and welfare check at 
Lahser and Stafford. 

• Beverly Park closed for the night. 

• Police were called to the area of a suspicious vehicle 
parked and running in the caller’s driveway. The 
driver pulled out of the driveway as soon as the police 
cars arrived and was stopped at Kirkshire & Pierce. 
The driver smelled of intoxicants and failed multiple 
sobriety tests. The driver was arrested without 
incident and was transported to Birmingham PD for 
detoxification. 

• Noise Complaint in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Suspicious Person on 13 Mile and Greenfield. 

• Extra Patrol in the area of Birmingham and Dunblaine. 

• Extra Patrol at Sunset and Wilshire. 

• Alarm at Beverly School. 

• Animal Complaint at Southfield and Kinross. 

• Animal Complaint on Meadow Lane. 

• Wires Down on Beverly Road. 

• Wires Down on Locherbie Street. 

• Extra Patrol at Birmingham and Kinross. 

• Extra Patrol at Walmer and Churchill. 

• Extra Patrol at Waltham and Sunset. 

• Extra Patrol at Ronsdale and Evans Court. 

• Animal Complaint on Southfield and Kinross. 

• Traffic enforcement at 14 Mile and Bellvine Trail. 

• Extra Patrol in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Extra Patrol in Robinhood and Nottingham. 

• Suspicious Person on Buckingham. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Greenfield. 

• Extra Patrol in the area of Stellamar and Marimoor. 

• Extra Patrol in the area of Nottingham and Crossbow. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 14 Mile and Pierce. 

• Extra Patrol in Huntley Square Apartments after 
hours. 



• Crossing Guard Detail at Southfield and Beverly. 

• Greenfield School student drop off. 

• Fire Alarm on Lahser Road. 

• Vandalism at Greenfield School just discovered.  

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Medical on Dunblaine Street. 

• Fraud Report taken on Inglewood Street. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Southfield and Beverly. 

• Greenfield School student pick up. 

• Citizen Assist on Kirkshire Street. 

• Extra Patrol in the Huntley Subdivision. 

• Extra Patrol in the Waltham Subdivision. 

• Extra Patrol in the Ronsdale Subdivision. 

• Extra Patrol in the area of Riverside and Locherbie. 

• Alarm at Greenfield School. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Pierce and Beverly. 

• Extra Patrol in the Mayfair Subdivision. 

• Extra Patrol in the area of Pierce and Birwood. 

• Extra Patrol in the Huntley Square Apartments. 
 
 
FIRE 7 EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES, EMS CALL 
 

• 2 EMS Call – Motor Vehicle Accident with Injuries. 

• 4 Power Line Down.  

• 4 Lift Assist/Invalid Assist. 

• 2 Smoke Investigations. 

• 8 Fire Alarms. 

• 1 CO Alarm. 

• 3 Apparatus Checks. 

• Supervise Platoon 3 and 4. 

• Bi-Weekly NFIRS data export uploaded to FEMA. 

• Attend Monthly MABAS Meeting. 

• Annual hose testing completed. 

• Attend Monthly South Oakland Fire Association 
meeting. 

• Attend County Training Committee Chairperson 
meeting with State Fire Marshal. 

• Complete and submit required PFAS Training 
Information to Bureau of Fire Services. 

• Update department information with US Fire 
Administration. 

 

javascript:parent.bobj.event.publish('drilldown',%20'CrystalReportViewer',%20'brch=0-1&name=CountPerIncType1&drillname=322%2520-%2520EMS%2520Call%2520-%2520Vehicle%2520Accident%2520with%2520Injuries&gnpath=%252FInc%2520Type%2520First%2520Char%2520for%2520Group%255B3%255D%252FINCIDENT_TB.INCIDENT_TYPE_CD%255B322%2520-%2520EMS%2520Call%2520-%2520Vehicle%2520Accident%2520with%2520Injuries%255D')
javascript:parent.bobj.event.publish('drilldown',%20'CrystalReportViewer',%20'brch=1-0&name=CountPerIncType1&drillname=554%2520-%2520Lift%2520Assist%252FInvalid%2520Assist&gnpath=%252FInc%2520Type%2520First%2520Char%2520for%2520Group%255B5%255D%252FINCIDENT_TB.INCIDENT_TYPE_CD%255B554%2520-%2520Lift%2520Assist%252FInvalid%2520Assist%255D')
javascript:parent.bobj.event.publish('drilldown',%20'CrystalReportViewer',%20'brch=1-0&name=GroupNameINCIDENTTYPECD1&drillname=554%2520-%2520Lift%2520Assist%252FInvalid%2520Assist&gnpath=%252FInc%2520Type%2520First%2520Char%2520for%2520Group%255B5%255D%252FINCIDENT_TB.INCIDENT_TYPE_CD%255B554%2520-%2520Lift%2520Assist%252FInvalid%2520Assist%255D')
javascript:parent.bobj.event.publish('drilldown',%20'CrystalReportViewer',%20'brch=4-1&name=CountPerIncType1&drillname=900T%2520-%2520Apparatus%2520Checks&gnpath=%252FInc%2520Type%2520First%2520Char%2520for%2520Group%255B9%255D%252FINCIDENT_TB.INCIDENT_TYPE_CD%255B900T%2520-%2520Apparatus%2520Checks%255D')
javascript:parent.bobj.event.publish('drilldown',%20'CrystalReportViewer',%20'brch=4-1&name=GroupNameINCIDENTTYPECD1&drillname=900T%2520-%2520Apparatus%2520Checks&gnpath=%252FInc%2520Type%2520First%2520Char%2520for%2520Group%255B9%255D%252FINCIDENT_TB.INCIDENT_TYPE_CD%255B900T%2520-%2520Apparatus%2520Checks%255D')


DETECTIVE BUREAU AND SCHOOL LIAISON 

• SLO Balagna Swat breaching school. 

• Traffic conference at 46th District Court. 

• 6 OWI tickets issued. 

• Retail Fraud Swear to/Arraignment. 

• BYA Referral-Retail Fraud at Market Fresh. 

• Det Baller Shift supervisor 5/13/2022-0700-1500. 

• Taser certification completed for PSO Cazan. 

• Sent OWI 3 felony case to OC Prosecutor. 

• Court innovations at 46th District Court. 

• Prisoner transport to the 46th District Court. 

• Picked up evidence at OC crime lab. 

• Det. Baller shift supervisor 5/25/2022-0700-1900 

• Det. Baller shift supervisor 5/26/2022-0700-1900, 
1900-0700. 

• Det. Baller/Det. Balagna worked Memorial Day 
Parade detail. 

• Meeting set up with MDHHS-Safe and appropriate 
holding of juveniles. 

• Received warrant for OWI 3 from OC prosecutor 

• Investigate UDAA-22-2282.    

 
 



Concert in the Park
Friday, June 3, 2022

7:00 PM   Beverly Park

Free to attend!

Family friendly!

Food trucks!

Brought to you by the Village of Beverly Hills 

Parks & Recreation Board

Featuring: 
The Bob Mervak Band



VETERANS
RESOURCE FAIRS
Cost: Free  |  Registration Required

May 26, 2022  |  9 a.m. - Noon
American Legion Post 108  |  130 E Drahner Rd., Oxford
Register at: tinyurl.com/47a94fv5

June 30, 2022  |  9 a.m. - Noon
Oakland County Conference Center 
Executive Office Building 41W  |  2100 Pontiac Lake Rd., Waterford
Register at: tinyurl.com/jmcydeck

Representatives will be onsite to serve all veterans, active duty, guard 
and reserves, and their families with these resources:

FREE food boxes

Michigan Veterans Affairs Agency—Printing DD214’s on site

Gary Burnstein Community Health Clinic—Scheduling free 
dental appointments

Detroit VA Healthcare System—offering registration help and exams for 
non-enrolled Veterans

Dorsey College Cosmetology Program—Hairstylists will be on site giving 
free haircuts to Veterans

Oakland County Veterans’ Services—providing information and claims 
assistance regarding veteran benefits and giving away $50 Meijer gift 
cards—to be eligible you must be a Veteran and Oakland County resident, 
and you must present a copy of your DD214

Oakland County Housing & Neighborhood Development—helping 
residents with housing counseling and more

Oakland Community Health Network—addressing any behavioral health 
issues and concerns, including behavioral health needs for children

Oakland County Michigan Works!—providing veterans and their families with 
career planning, training programs, job search resources and the opportunity 
to meet with an employment specialist

Contact: Tyrone Jordan at jordant@oakgov.com  |  (248) 285-8016

AMER ICAN 
LEG ION
POST 108

Join Us at Two Upcoming
Info Item

https://www.eventbrite.com/e/oakland-county-veterans-resource-fair-tickets-317629326867
https://www.eventbrite.com/e/oakland-county-veterans-resource-fair-tickets-317648875337
mailto:jordant%40oakgov.com?subject=

	Agenda 06072022 (color)
	C1 Draft Council Minutes 05172022
	C3-4 Review and file bills recapped 06.06..2022
	06.07.2022 Cover Sheet
	CHK

	C5 ITP 5K Memo
	C6 BPS 5th Grade Run Memo and Attachment
	C6 BPS 5th Grade Run Memo
	BPS PE 5th Grade run proposal-22

	C7 Survey Memo and Questions
	C7 Survey Memo
	C7 Beverly Hills Parks and Recreation 5-Year Plan Survey Questions

	C8 2022 Pride Resolution
	B1 Memo14Mile.ScopeofWork
	B1 Copy of 14 Mile Road.Cost Options.jrc
	Manager's Report.JRC.06722
	BHPS weekly activity May12-June 012022
	Info Item June 3, 2022 Concert in the Park
	Info Item VS-0526VetResourceFair-v3

